
UNITED NATIONS 
TRUSTEESHIP COUNCIL 
Thirteenth Session 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS Page 

Examination of conditions in the Trust Territory of 
Ruanda-Urundi: (a) annual report (T/1081); (b) 
petitions circulated under rule 85, paragraph 2, of the 
rules of procedure (continued) 

Questions concerning the Trust Territory and replies 
of the special representative (continued) ........... 239 

Examination of conditions in the Trust Territory of 
Tanganyika: (a) annual report (T/1083); (b) petitions 
circulated under rule 85, paragraph 2, of the rules of 
procedure (continued) 

General debate (continued) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 240 

President: Mr. Leslie Knox MUNRO {New Zealand). 

Present: 
The representatives of the following States members 

of the Trusteeship Council: Australia, Belgium, Chir:a, 
El Salvador, France, Haiti, India, New Zealand, Syna, 
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom 
of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States 
of America. 

The representatives of the following specialized 
agencies: International Labour Organisation; United 
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organiza-
tion; World Health Organization. 
Examination of conditions in the Trust Territory 

of Ruanda-Urundi: (a) annual report (T/ 
1081); (b) petitions circulated under rule 85, 
paragraph 2, of the rules of procedure 
(continued) 

[Agenda items 3 (b) and 4] 
At the invitation of the President, Mr. Leroy, special 

representative of the Administering Authority for the 
Trust Territory of Ruanda-Urundi, took a place at the 
Council table. 

QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE TRUST TERRITORY AND 
REPLIES OF THE SPECIAL REPRESENTATIVE (continued) 

Social advancement (continued) 
1. Mr. LEROY (Special representative for Ruanda-
Urundi) explained, in reply to a question asked by the 
representative of New Zealand at the previous meeting, 
that indigenous medical assistants had numbered fifty-
three in 1952. The figure for 1953 was seventy-seven, 
of whom sixteen were still undergoing training. 
2. In reply to a question from Mr. TSARAPKIN 
(Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), he said that the 
Decree of 16 March 1922, which governed the con-
ditions of recruitment and employment and relations 
between employers and employees, had been made 
applicable to Ruanda-Urundi. 
3. Mr. TSARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) asked if the enactments relating to the 
residence and movement of indigenous inhabitants in 
force in the Belgian Congo, particularly the Decree of 
12 February 1913, concerning segregation of living 
accommodation, were applicable to the Trust Territory. 

239 

512 th Meeting 

Wednesday, 10. March 1954, 
at 2 p.m. 

NEW YORK 

He asked the same question with regard to the Decree 
of 23 May 1906, under which any coloured person who 
was a beggar or a vagrant could be committed to a 
special institution for a period of one to seven years. 
4. Mr. LEROY (Special representative for Ruanda-
Urundi) replied that, in general, the laws in force in 
Ruanda-Urundi were similar to those applicable to 
the Belgian Congo. 
5. In reply to a further question from Mr. TSA-
RAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), 
Mr. LEROY (Special representative for Ruanda-
Urundi) said that it had not seemed necessary to limit 
the length of the working day by decree since in practice 
it never exceeded eight hours and was often as little as 
seven hours. 
6. Mr. TSARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) noted that, according to the data given on 
page 168 of the report 1, real wages were about 30 per 
cent below the theoretical minimum wage necessary 
for a family's subsistence; that minimum itself was in 
any case so low that it could not ensure decent living 
conditions. 
7. Mr. LEROY (Special representative for Ruanda-
Urundi) pointed out that the Administering Authority 
was constantly endeavouring to raise wages; it was 
obliged, however, to proceed by stages, for too sharp an 
increase in wages might lead to the dismissal of many 
workers and the closing down of undertakings essential 
to the Territory's economic development. The real 
minimum wage was at present about eighteen Belgian 
francs at Usumbura, a considerable increase over the 
eleven francs which had been paid in 1952. Wages were 
approximating more and more closely to the theoretical 
minimum. 
8. Mr. TSARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) having inquired why emigration of the 
indigenous population to the Belgian Congo and the 
neighbouring British colonies was constantly on the 
increase, Mr. LEROY (Special representative for 
Ruanda-Urundi) pointed out that the Territory was 
over-populated: an area of 54,000 square kilometres, 
including large stretches of land unsuitable for cul-
tivation owing to the ruggedness of the terrain or the 
swampy soil, held a population of over 4 million inhabi-
tants, concentrated chiefly on the high plateaux. When 
the indigenous inhabitants had difficulty in obtaining a 
livelihood at home, they emigrated to the Belgian Congo 
and the neighbouring British territories; in the latter 
case the emigration was largely seasonal. 
9. Mr. TSARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) thought that the emigration was due not 
to over-population but to economic stagnation, which 
was preventing many of the indigenous inhabitants from 
finding work in Ruanda-Urundi. 
10. Mr. LEROY (Special representative for Ruanda-
Urundi) pointed out that the Administering Authority 

1 See Rapvort soumis par le Gou1'emement belge d l'Assem-
htee generale des Nations Unies au sujet de !'administration 
du Ruanda-Urundi pendant l'annee 1952, Brussels, Etablisse-
ments Generaux d'Imprimerie, 1953. 

T/SR.512 



had reported that the Territory was over-populated and 
that the 1948 and 1951 Visiting Missions had also noted 
that fact. Furthermore, Belgium could not be accused 
of neglecting the development of Ruanda-Urundi: it was 
due to Belgium's persistent efforts and to the measures 
it had taken to drain the swamps, conserve and rehabi-
litate the soil, irrigate the deserts, and teach the in-
digenous inhabitants to cultivate the land, that the 
famine which had formerly periodically decimated the 
population had been stamped out. 
11. l.\1r. TSARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) noted that the Administering Authority had 
reported a recrudescence of tuberculosis. The measures 
taken to combat that scourge were wholly inadequate: 
only 150,000 persons out of a population of 4 million 
had undergone a medical examination. 
12. Mr. LEROY (Special representative for Ruanda-
Urundi) stated that a mission from the Universite libre 
of Brussels, which had reached the Territory in 1951, 
had undertaken a mass campaign for the detection of 
tuberculosis. The number of cases reported in recent 
years had risen simply because the mission had been 
e;::.tending its examination and had in consequence 
diagnosed many more cases. The incidence of the 
disease was no higher in Ruanda-Urundi than in other 
Territo:ies .. ~he Administering Authority was doing 
everythmg 111 1ts power to combat the disease and there 
was no reason to belittle its efforts. 

Mr. Leroy, special representative of the Administering 
At,tthority for the Trust Territory of Ruanda-Urundi, 
wzthdrew. 

Examination of conditions in the Trust Territory 
of Tanganyika: (a) annual report (T/1083); 
(b) petitions circulated under rule 85, para· 
graph 2, of the rules of procedure (continued) 

[Agenda items 3 (a) and 4 J 
At the invitation of the President, Mr. Grattan-

Bellew, special representative of the Administering 
Authority for the Trust Territory of Tanganyika, took 
a place at the Council table. 

GENERAL DEBATE (continued) 
13. Mr. ASHA (Syria) thought that it was difficult 
to judge the progress made in the Trust Territory con-
cerning basic problems. Certain ordinary improvements 
which might be expected from any reasonably efncient 
administration had indeed been made ; but no solution 
seemed to have been reached concerning the real prob-
lem, which was the political, economic and social 
inferiority of the African majority to the immigrant 
European and Asian minorities. 
14. It was true that, as yet, the situation in Tanganyika 
had not become dangerous and explosive, as in other 
territories, some of them very close to Tanganyika, 
where the same problem existed; it was also true that 
the worst manifestations of that kind of situation had 
been avoided. He would like to think that that was at 
least partly due to the fact that Tanganyika was a Trust 
Territory; its development was therefore in full view of 
the public opinion of the world; the international status 
of Tanganyika had also helped the Administering Au-
thority to stand fast against any tendencies towards 
extreme racial theories and doctrines on the part of the 
immigrant minorities. Because the Administering Au-
thority could count on the full and legitimate support 
of the United Nations, it could make Tanganyika a 

model example of how to ensure that the African 
majority played its full role and exercised its ~roper 
rights in the development of the country and, m the 
second place, of how to establish the cond~tions under 
which the immigrant communities were ent1tled to stay 
or were justified in staying in the Territory. His dele~a
tion had no doubt of the sincerity of the Administermg 
Authority's intentions, but noted with some ~nxi~ty 
that althouah there had been no serious ractal dis-
turbances i; Tanganyika, there were present in that 
Territory a large number of the elements •_vhi~h had 
given rise to such disturbances in other terntones. 
15. There were nearly 8 million Africans, 80,000 
Asians and 18,000 Europeans in the Territory. T~e 
importance of the part played by each of those et~mc 
groups varied in inverse proportion to their numencal 
strength. The Europeans, the smallest group, had the 
largest number of seats in the main organs of the 
Government; moreover, according to the report of the 
United Nations Visiting Mission to Trust Territories 
in East Africa, 1951 (T/946 and Corr.l) they were 
strongly opposed to having equal representation of the 
three communities. Similarly, the Europeans held all 
the key posts in the Administration. They also owned 
a major part of the private sector of the Territory'~ 
economy: for example, they produced more than halt 
the Territory's exports; out of exports valued at 
£47 million, they accounted for £27 million. It was true 
that the Europeans held only a small fraction of the 
land, but as the 1951 Visiting Mission had observed, 
most of the land alienated for their use was fertile and 
situated in areas enjoying good climate and abunda_nt 
rainfall. The same disparity reappeared in the soctal 
field. The Visiting Mission had pointed out that the 
Africans enjoyed a low standard of living. There was 
every indication that the standard of living of the 
Europeans who had settled in Tanganyika to enjoy a 
better life than they could have had in their mother 
country was comparatively high. The gap between the 
Europeans and the Africans could be measured by com· 
paring the economic position of a European producer 
of sisal making a profit of several thousand pounds a 
year with that of an African worker on the same 
European plantation, who earned from twenty-three to 
twenty-nine shillings a month. For purposes of ~d~ca· 
tion, the Europeans, Asians and Africans were ~lVld.ed 
into three separate groups. It was clear that the mmonty 
composed of European children enjoyed better schools 
and received a more thorough education than most 
African children. 

240 

16. He had no doubt that the Administering Authority 
was firmly resolved to correct that dangerous disparity. 
It was true, for example, that the Administration h~d 
gone against the views of the local European settlers m 
proposing that the three ethnic groups should ~ave 
equal representation in the Legislative Council. Simllar· 
ly, the Administering Authority's financial policy was 
intended to correct the imbalance in the export trade: 
taxes and customs duties siphoned off part of the 
Europeans' profits, which the Administration diverted 
to public expenditure for the good of the Territory. as 
a whole. The Administering Authority was also trymg 
to introduce the Africans to better farming methods, to 
encourage them to greater activity in the production of 
exports, and to raise their standard of living and ~he 
standard of education in the African schools by spendmg 
more and more money on education. Nevertheless, he 
was not sure that those measures were far-reaching 



enough, that they were being applied rapidly enough or 
that they held out the assurance of eventual success. The 
Visiting Missions to the Territory had expressed some 
doubt on those questions, a doubt shared by the Trustee-
ship Council. 
17. To promote political advancement, for example, 
the Administering Authority had planned to reorganize 
the Legislative Council in such a way that the three 
racial groups would be equally represented. While it 
recognized the importance of the plan, the Trusteeship 
Council had none the less felt that the interests of the 
three communities should be subordinated to that of the 
Territory as a whole, and had suggested the institution 
of a common electoral roll (A/2150, p. 32). Two years 
had passed since then, but the electoral roll had not 
been instituted and the Legislative Council had not been 
reorganized as intended; its membership consisted of 
seven Europeans and only three Asians and four 
Africans. Similarly, although the Council had welcomed 
the idea of a decentralization of the government and 
the establishment of provincial councils in which the 
indi~enous population could have greater say in local 
affairS, and although the 1951 Visiting Mission had 
stressed the need for immediate steps along those lines, 
even before the completion of the long-term investi-
gations, nothing had been done, and the annual report 2 

said nothing about provincial councils. The same was 
true in local government: the county councils which the 
Visiting Mission had expected to be operating within 
a year had still not been established. Moreover, it was 
somewhat hard to understand how those councils would 
fit in with the existing system. which was based on 
the authority of the traditional chiefs. 
18. The Syrian delegation thought that prompt action 
was needed. The Administering Authority should make 
every effort to persuade the indigenous inhabitants to 
take an active interest in government, and, in particular, 
to organize further experiments in election by secret 
ballot. .It should also appoint more Africans to the 
Executtve . Council and to senior administrative posts. 
The exercrse of power was the only means by which 
the indigenous peoples could be prepared for self-
government. Furthermore, it was hard to understand 
why, after forty years of British administration not a 
s!ngle African should have acquired the trainidg con-
stdered adequate for an important administrative post. 
Nor was it sufficient to encourage the use of Swahili, 
the .language of the Territory; it should become an 
officral language and the Administering Authority 
should take the necessary steps to make it an official 

' language. 
19. '~ith regard to the judicial system, the Syrian 
delega.tton had been concerned to hear the special repre-
sentative say that the Administering Authority did not 
plan to grant the people of Tanganyika the right to 
choose their own judges. While it might be premature 
to do so for the time being, the fact remained that that 
was a right to be exercised by the indigenous peoples 
as they developed. The Administering Authority should 
provide young Africans with the necessary training, 
send them abroad to complete. their education if neces-
sary, and appoint them first to junior posts where they 

2 See Report by Her M ajestv' s Government in the U1tited 
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the General 
Assembly of the United Nations on the Administration of 
Ta!lganyika U!tder United Kingdom Trusteeship for the Year 
19:>2, London: Her Majesty's Stationery Office, 1953, Colonial 
No. 293. 

241 

could gain the required experience, and then to higher 
judicial office. 
20. According to the Administering Authority, it was 
extremely difficult to promulgate a citizenship law for 
Tanganyika. He trusted that the Council would give 
due attention to the matter and would ask the Adminis-
tering Authority to take appropriate steps to institute 
universal suffrage and citizenship as soon as possible. 
21. With reference to economic questions, he expressed 
concern over the disequilibrium prevailing in Tan-
ganyika, where a few Europeans owned most of the 
resources. The Administering Authority should en-
deavour to improve the system of land tenure. In that 
connexion, he was interested to note the appointment 
of a special officer to advise on land tenure. It was to 
be hoped that the Administering Authority would 
endeavour to teach the people of Tanganyika more 
modern farming methods and provide them with farm 
machinery. The authorities should encourage the 
development of light industry, such as the textile indus-
try, for which the necessary raw materials were avail-
able in the Territory. In that way, permanent employ-
ment could be given to more indigenous persons and 
the country's economy would become more balanced. 
Exemption from import duties and local taxes could 
contribute substantially to promoting light industry. The 
Administering Authority was very wisely granting 
Africans more prospecting licences; it should help them 
as much as possible to take part in exploiting the Terri-
tory's mineral wealth. In mining, as in industry, 
indigenous enterprises should be encouraged. 
22. The authorities should continue to co-operate with 
the Technical Assistance Administration; such co-
operation was of great benefit to the entire area. 
23. vVith reference to social questions, he said the 
standard of living of the indigenous inhabitants had not 
changed for some years and was still very low. The 
action taken by the Administering Authority to revise 
the salary scale for civil servants was a step towards 
the equalization of salaries. The Administering Au-
thority should expedite all measures necessary to 
improve the people's well-being. It was disappointing 
to note that the people of the Territory, according to 
the special representative, had considered it advisable 
to retain corporal punishment. The Administering Au-
thority should abolish that practice as soon as possible. 
It should also provide labour legislation to regulate 
weekly holidays for workers and pay for days of 
absence due to illness. Medical services had been 
expanded, but there was still much to be done in public 
health. Moreover, there should be no discrimination in 
the admission of patients to hospitals. 
24. In education, the Administration's ten-year plan 
was inadequate. The percentage of children who would 
attend school under the plan w;:ts much too small. It was 
true that expenditure for education had been substan-
tially increased, but plans should also be made for 
compulsory and free education. Moreover, it would be 
desirable to initiate special courses which might con-
stitute the nucleus of a future university. 
25. Tanganyika should be moulded into a national 
entity before existing rivalries between the various 
raci~l groups became too pronounced. Consequently, the 
Afncans s~ould play their full natural part in the life 
of the Terntory. The United Nations and the Adminis-
tering Authority had the opportunity of proving that 
peoples of entirely different characteristics could live 
together peacefully as a single nation. 



26. Mr. LOOMES (Australia) observed that the 
reforms recommended by the Special Commissioner on 
Constitutional Development were currently under study 
by the Government of Tanganyika and the Adminis-
tering Authority. Application of the legislation pr_o-
viding for the establishment of county and to~n coun~tls 
had met with opposition from the Chagga tnbe, whtch 
preferred to retain the tribal system. While that attitude 
was disappointing, he shared the Administering Au-
thority's view that constitutional changes should not be 
imposed upon the population until every possible en-
deavour had been made to secure its co-operation. The 
establishment of an inter-racial consultative body in the 
Moshi district might lead to greater understanding of 
political matters among the population. Moreover, it was 
interesting to observe that local councils had begun to 
take over the administrative and executive functions 
of the Native Authorities. 
27. In the field of judicial organization, he noted with 
satisfaction that the number of resident magistrates had 
increased. 
28. In the Economic field, it should be noted that after 
the drop in the price of sisal- the Territory's principal 
export commodity- the Administering Authority had 
attempted to diversify the country's production. The 
Administering Authority should be complimented for 
its efforts to establish experimental stations with a 
view to increasing the production of such commodities 
as cotton and coffee. Besides the steady development of 
local handicrafts, the food industry was expanding; 
that, too, was an encouraging sign. In addition to con-
tinuing its road construction programme, the Adminis-
tering Authority was preparing further surveys of the 
network of communications. The increase in the number 
of co-operatives, which engaged in numerous activities, 
was also a most promising development. Lastly, the 
measures taken to encourage the storage of grain had 
considerably alleviated the Territory's economic situa-
tion during poor crop years. 
29. In the field of social advancement, the special 
effort made to build new hospitals should be noted. The 
World Health Organization had furnished the Territory 
with assistance and the Administration would no doubt 
make full use of the facilities which that specialized 
agency had made available. Particular attention was 
being paid to the appointment of district medical officers. 
As a result of the improvement in the public health 
service the control of communicable diseases, including 
plague, had become more effective, employed labour was 
receiving medical care and rural sanitation was being 
developed. The Administering Authority had adopted 
a realistic approach to the labour-supply question in 
Tanganyika. The local administration's careful planning 
with respect to housing was particularly significant in 
view of the perceptible drift of Africans away from 
rural districts. 
30. In the field of education, he noted the participation 
of the indigenous inhabitants in the formulation of 
educational policy at both the central and local levels. 
He also observed with satisfaction the establishment of 
the Natural Resources School, which could receive 450 
African students. Moreover, the revised ten-year plan 
for education was proceeding on sound lines. He 
approved of the emphasis being placed on the develop-
ment of primary schools; at the same time, progress had 
been maintained in the expansion of secondary schools, 
with the result that several Africans were attending 
higher education courses in the United Kingdom and 

elsewhere. The Administering Authority should be 
complimented on its mass literacy campaigns, which 
had been accepted with much enthusiasm by the people. 

The meeting was suspended at 3.55 p.m. and was 
resumed at 4.20 p.m. 
31. Mr. SCOTT (New Zealand) observed that while 
there might not have been any noticeable development 
of a community opinion, the absence of racial discord in 
the Territory was in itself encouraging. He. therefo_re 
welcomed the proposed formation of . a?- u~terractal 
Kilimanjaro county council. The Admmtstenng Au-
thority's intention to persevere in its attempt to persuade 
the Chagga people to accept it was sound. The acceptance 
of the principle of racial political equality augure~ we!! 
for the future in spite of the apprehension to whtch 1t 
had given rise among some groups. In the absence of a 
homogeneous social structure, the establishment of local 
councils was a sound initiative. It seemed clear that at 
the moment it would be dangerous to vest responsibility 
in the hands of politicians who could not claim to be 
representatives of the people. ·while it was unfo~tunate 
that the establishment of local councils had fatled to 
arouse enthusiasm among the Africans, ~he policy !hat 
the Administering Authority was attemptmg to p~t m!o 
practice was sound and the Administration w~s :1ght m 
not wishing to impose its views upon the mdtgenous 
population. 
32. The policy of providing grain-storage facilities ~ad 
succeeded in averting the serious consequences to whtsh 
the unfavourable agricultural output in 1952 and 19;,3 
might have led. The Administration should nev~rtheless 
be urged to give priority to schemes designed to mcreas~ 
output and to improve the conditions and metho.ds ot 
the African farmers. Such a policy entailed contmued 
attention to the construction of roads, improved water 
supplies, more credit facilities for agriculturists, the 
transfer from pastoral to mixed farming and the use of 
fertilizers. The success of those measures depended to 
a large extent upon the result of preliminary surveys 
of the land by competent agricultural. ~fficers .~n.d also 
upon an expansion of agricultural trammg faCihttes for 
the population. In that connexion, the opening of the 
Natural Resources School and the development of _the 
co-operative movement were most heartening, particu-
larly since the Administering Authority faced co~
siderable difficulties such as the poverty of the sot!, 
indigenous systems of land tenure, lack of funds and 
the poor state of health of the rural population. 

242 

33. The complete elimination of the tsetse fly thn;at 
to cattle required funds beyond the country'~ fi~anctal 
resources. The most effective method of eradtcatmg the 
tsetse fly might be the clearing of bush and the settle-
ment of population. 
34. In the field of public health, existing services _had 
been expanded, expenditure increased and new hosptta_Js 
constructed. However, much remained to be done ~n 
the field of preventive medicine. It should be noted, m 
that connexion, that some African girls were already 
being trained as public health nurses or assistant n?r~es. 
The experience acquired in Western Samoa in a strntlar 
project had paid considerable dividends. Even though 
some of the girls did not finish their studies, they 
acquired useful knowledge of hygiene and maternal a?d 
child welfare, and could thus exercise a bene~c~al 
influence on their communities. Moreover, the Admmts-
tering Authority should increase the number of health 
survey teams for communicable diseases in order '!lore 
effectively to control malaria, yaws and tuberculosiS. It 



might then consider the advisability of applying to the 
specialized agencies concerned for assistance in mass 
campaigns against those diseases. 
35. Mr. DORSINVILLE (Haiti) observed that the 
indigenous population in the Territory did not appear 
to be interested in the proposed constitutional reforms. 
The Administering Authority's policy towards tribal 
customs was not sufficiently bold. The indigenous inhabi-
tants participated in the country's political life only to 
the extent of having one representative in the Executive 
Council who was, at the same time, a member of the 
Legislative Council. Both organs had a majority of 
European members. The establishmertt of a new political 
and social system should be considered, for otherwise a 
minority problem might arise before long. It was 
unfortunate that universal suffrage had not yet been 
introduced in the Territory, even though the more 
educated inhabitants had clearly asked for its intro-
duction. 
36.. In the economic field, the general situation re-
mamed somewhat precarious despite the increase in the 
export of such products as sisal, coffee and cotton. 
While the difficulties encountered should not be 
minimized, the blame should not be placed solely on the 
customs of the indigenous inhabitants. They should be 
encouraged to use modern agricultural methods. The 
~d?1inistering_ Authority should not only caution the 
mdigenous chiefs, whose decisions contributed to the 
impove~ishment of the soil, but, if necessary, should take 
energetic measures. 
37. Vlith regard to social advancement the bulk of t?e indige_n~JUS inhabitants still lived und~r very primi-
tive conditiOns. Wages- from two to six dollars a 
month- were low. Consequently, even the low rent 
of two or three dollars a month for government housing 
was beyond the reach of the mass of the population. 
The next reports of the Administering Authority and 
of the_ fo_rth~oming Visiting Mission might include 
tables mdicatmg the average family budget of various 
sectors of the Territory's urban and rural population. 
38. According to the special representative, there had 
been an increase in the number of persons sentenced 
to corporal punishment in 1953, which suggested that t?e General Assembly and Trusteeship Council resolu-
tions concerning the abolition of corporal punishment 
were not being properly applied. The arguments 
advan~ed by the Administ_ering Authority to justify the 
retention of. c?rpo_ral pumshment were not convincing. 
If the Admtmstermg Authority preserved that relic of 
slavery, it was not advancing the cause of civilization. 
It could only do so by introducing reforms and giving 
the people a sense of human dignity. 
39. With regard to educational advancement, the 
development of education was hindered if pupils had 
to pay school fees, however small. The Administering 
Authority should begin by making primary education 
free and compulsory, as it was in other territories. The 
resulting increase in the number of pupils would 
encourage the authorities to provide the necessary funds 
for education. In discussing higher education the special 
representative had said that the problem was not to 
build university buildings but to recruit students and 
tr~in teachers. That argument could not be lightly dis-
missed but the need for higher education would be 
increasingly felt. At the present stage, efforts should 
obviously be concentrated on primary education with a 
view to training gifted pupils who would continue their 
education at the secondary and university levels. 

243 

40. Mr. RYCKMANS (Belgium) said that it was not 
reasonable to expect spectacular progress in the develop-
ment of a Trust Territory from one year to the next. 
Impartial experts who had studied the Expanded Pro-
gramme of Technical Assistance had stated that by 
expending enormous sums on the development of the 
under-developed countries the standard of living and 
average productivity in those countries might be raised 
by approximately 2 per cent per annum. That modest 
achievement would require considerable effort. The 
Trusteeship Council had therefore no right to ask or 
to expect the Administering Authority to perform 
miracles which had not been performed in any other 
territories. 
41. The annual report showed that the Territory was 
making steady and certain progress. For example, 
between 1948 and 1953 the Territory's budget had risen 
from £7 million to approximately £18 million. There 
was, however, a limit beyond which a budget could not 
be increased and there was also a limit to what could 
be done no matter how much was spent, because in 
dealing with human beings the time factor was impor-
tant. For example, by doubling the school budget the 
Administering Authority might be able to double the 
number of children attending schools but it could not 
halve the time taken to educate a child. Half a generation 
elapsed between the time a child entered school and the 
time he left college as a trained teacher. That was a fact 
which no amount of goodwill and no financial effort on 
the part of a government could change. 
42. ·with regard to social advancement, it would be 
useful to have population figures for the provinces. 
Some of the figures might be disturbing because of the 
disparity between the number of male and female inhabi-
tants. Such a situation might call for special measures. 
It would also be useful to have employment statistics 
by province as the labour force employed in some 
provinces appeared to be large, which necessarily implied 
that workers were being recruited from other districts 
or even from abroad. His delegation had read with 
satisfaction the circular on indigenous employment, on 
pages 328 and 329 of the annual report, in which the 
Administration showed that it was not only realistic 
but also mindful of the special interests of the workers 
and of the population in the various regions. 
43. With regard to medical care, the 10 million con-
sultations showed that the people had learned through 
experience to appreciate the efficiency and usefulness 
of the medical services provided by the Administration 
or with its help. 
44. vVith regard to educational advancement, the 
number of teachers and the figures for school attendance 
were encouraging. The number of girl students 
accounted for almost 30 per cent of the total, a high 
figure for Africa, which was evidence of the great effort 
being made by the Administration. His delegation noted 
with satisfaction that the Administration willingly 
accepted assi::tance from all those wishing to collaborate 
with it, provided of course that the syllabuses were 
adhered to. Financial assistance from the Administra-
tion provided SO per cent of the cost of building con-
struction and 95 per cent of the salaries of teachers. The 
Administering Authority might consider the possibility 
of granting higher subsidies for the construction of new 
schools. ·with regard to the "bush schools", the value 
of the instruction given, rudimentary as it was should 
not be under-estimated. It had been found i~ many 
countries that the method of asking those who could 



read to teach someone else to read was a useful way 
of increasing literacy and had achieved positive results. 
The "bush school" offered education of that kind and 
also _gave the people elementary training in hygiene, 
farmmg etc. 
45. On the whole, the Belgian delegation was satisfied 
with the significant and steady progress which had been 
made in Tanganyika. 
4?. ~r. _HURE (F~ance) said that in considering the 
Situatwn m Tanganyika the Council should not forget 
the special problems, found in many parts of Africa, 
crea~ed _by area, climate, vegetation, geographic and 
ethmc differences and the fact that the inhabitants had 
been introduced to modern civilization relatively 
recently. 
47. \Yith regard to . p_oliti~al advancement, he fully 
appreciated the Adm1mstenng Authority's desire to 
prom?te the development of institutions while avoiding 
the d1sturb~nces which were occurring in other parts 
of t~e cont~nent. Democracy could flourish only in a 
particular kmd of atmosphere. That desire justified the 
exchange of personnel to maintain order between 
Tanganyika and adjacent British territories. The 
Administration rightly felt that political education must 
be started at the village and district level. The method 
was reasonable and effective although clearly not 
spectacular enough for those who preferred theoretical 
meas~res to concrete achievement. Although the mem-
bers~IP. an~ powers of_ the councils set up to assist the 
Admim_stenng Authonty were still limited, their status 
;va~ bemg ~hang~d each· year to the advantage of the 
mdig~n.ous _mhabitants: ~is delegation approved of the 
J\dmmtsteru~g Authonty s attempts to convert the in-
dtgenous chtefs to democracy and to induce them to 
t~ke pu_blic. op_inion more fully into account. If tradi-
tiO~<I;l mstttutwns were transformed too rapidly, a 
pohttcal vacuum would be created that would result in 
anarchy or in the use of force. There were still no 
electo:ai .laws in the Territory, but the Committee on 
ConstitutiOnal Development had adopted the principle 
that members of the Legislative Council and of the 
regional and parish councils should be elected. 
48. In the economic field, the main difficulty was the 
shortage of locally produced foodstuffs. The Adminis-
~ration. was taking steps to remedy the situation by 
tmpr?':mg far~ing methods, building storage centres, 
providm~ low-mte_rest lo~ns for Africans engaged in 
co_mmercial and :ndustnal activities and delimiting 
alienable land, havmg regard to the needs of the tribes 
and the ~eneral economic requirements of the Territory. 
Prospe~tmg for coal, ?ase metals and petroleum was 
also bemg undertaken m order to encoura!Ye industrial 
development. "' 
49. In social matters, it was to be hoped that the 
status of women would continue to improve owing to 
the measures taken by the Administration to encourage 
the developme~t of wo~e~'s activit.ies. Many years 
woul~ be reqmred to ehmmate preJudices and sub-
stantial progress could not be expected from one year 
t? the next. vVith regard to medical matters, con-
siderable progress had been made in the control of 
contagious .disease and in setting up efficient medical 
services in a great many districts. 
50. T~ere had been . a sigr:ificant increase in public 
expen_dtture o~ ~ducatwn. Hts del~gation was particu-
larly ·mteresteo m the adult educatiOn campaign which 
~eem~d to have fired th~ imagination of the indigenous 
mhab1tants and was obviOusly the best means of bringing 

244 

about an immediate reduction in the very marked 
differences in the education levels of the various popu-
lation groups. 
51. Mr. EGUIZABAL (El Salvador) said that the 
report showed that the Territory was still a long way 
from the self-government and independence which were 
the goals of the International Trusteeship System. He 
realized that the complexity of the ethnic and traditional 
structure of the population, the diversity of languages 
and customs, and similar difficulties created problems 
which could not easily be solved. In view of the skill 
and leadership of the Administering Authority, he was 
certain that the latter would complete its mission within 
a reasonably short time. 
52. With regard to political progress, he was glad 
that the constitutional reform would soon bear fruit. 
The functions and membership of the Legislative Coun-
cil were, however, still very limited. It would be 
desirable to broaden its membership and legislative 
powers, and to curtail the number of cases in which its 
decisions had to be approved by the Governor. The 
establishment of a common roll would help to create a 
sense of territorial unity, which would prepare the 
ground for the establishment of citizenship. The exten-
sion of education and the use of Swahili would be helpful 
in achieving that goal. The members of the Legislative 
Council should not be appointed ; they should be elected 
on the basis of limited suffrage, which could be extended 
as the civic education of the people improved. It would 
be equally desirable to increase the number of Africans 
in the executive organs, in accordance with the Trustee-
ship Council's recommendation (A/1856, p. 29) and 
with the obligations which the Administering Au-
thorities had voluntarily assumed under the Trusteeship 
Agreements. 
53. The economic condition of the Territory was not 
very encouraging. The balance of trade was unfavour-
able and revenue had dropped substantially in com-
parison with the preceding year. The food situation \vas 
serious. The Territory had not become self-sufficient, 
although it was rich in natural resources. It was to be 
hoped that the numerous experiments which were being 
carried out in the Territory would soon bear fruit. \Vith 
regard to communications, he was pleased to see that 
the programme was developing according to plan, a?d 
asked the Administering Authority to continue tts 
efforts in that field. 
54. Turning to social matters, he noted that corporal 
punishment was still practised. He did not understand 
why that was the case at the present stage of civilization 
and urged the Administering Authority to take all 
possible steps to abolish such punishment. Despite the 
unfavourable report of the commission appointed to 
study the question, the Administration should try, by 
means of special legislation, to introduce principles 
which the population would be taught to understand 
and the effects of which would soon be evident. He 
pointed out that the Trusteeship Council ha? adopte_d 
resolution 127 (V) recommending the immedtate aboh-
tion of corporal punishment in Trust Territories. 
55. The Administering Authority should also increase 
the number of social workers in the Territory and per-
suade the men to accept modern ideas and not to prevent 
their wives from benefiting from social welfare work. 
56. In the educational field, he noted with satisfaction 
the progress achieved in co-operation with UNESCO. 
The literacy campaign should be strengthened and 
elementary education should be made free and com-



pulsory. Private schools should conform strictly to 
government syllabuses, and should be _supervised by 0e 
Administration. At least one centre ot h1gher educat10n 
should be established in the Territory. 
57. Mr. MENON (India) said that the Trusteeship 
Council had a special interest in the cultural and 
historical background of the situation in Tanganyika. 
Indeed, the Territory had a history going back ne~rly 
3,000 years, and the populations had come from vanous 
parts of the world. Like Togoland, Tanganyika ha~ been 
under the Administering Authority for a penod of 
thirty-five years. It was now necessary not only to 
survey the progress made between 1947 and 1954, but 
also to ask to what extent the world community had 
discharged its obligations towards the Territory. 
58. He wished to pay a tribute to the present Govern-
ment of the Territory and to the successive adminis-
trations which had achieved some progress in a land 
which had been neglected by civilization for some time 
and which had fallen prey to the incursions of Western 
imperialism in the nineteenth century. 
59. The political situation in Tanganyika was al-
together different from that in the West African terri-
tories. In the first place, the territories neighbouring 
Tanganyika offered a much less hopeful picture than the 
West African territories. Secondly, there was no 
suffrage in the Territory, although, subject to the 
provisions of the Trusteeship Agreement, British con-
ceptions of citizenship and law should prevail in the 
Territory. The Territory had made little or no progress 
towards self-government or independence. The lower, 
African units of government, which had the semblance 
of representative bodies, were isolated institutions rather 
than part of an integrated whole that might one day 
result in a national administration. Neither in the 
organs of central government nor in the organs of local 
government were there any persons who exercised au-
thority because of their position in relation to their 
peoples. All were appointed by the Administering 
Authority. 
60. On the economic side, some advances had been 
made for which the Administering Authority should be 
commended. At the same time, those advances should 
be read in terms of the Territory and its population; 
although the vast land and mineral resources made great 
economic development possible, the indigenous inhabi-
tants did not seem to have derived as much benefit as 
they should have done from the progress that had taken 
place. The diamond mines and the sisal industries, on 
which the Territory's international trade was based, 
employed 400,000 indigenous workers; that was the 
only benefit that the Africans derived from them. They 
were approximately 180,000 wage earners in agricul-
ture; they were presumably landless agricultural 
labourers; it would be interesting to know how many 
months a year they worked, and whether they had any 
means of support other than the low wages paid. 
6~. The Territory's balance of trade was favourable. 
Like the favourable balance in Uganda, it helped to 
offset the deficit in Kenya and to bridge the metropolitan 
country's dollar gap. It was regrettable that imports of 
capital goods in 1952 should have amounted to only 
£625,000. The figure was small in relation to the needs 
of the Territory and current prices, and showed that 
the rate of industrial advance was much slower than 
it should be. 
?2. The workers were generally paid per task; while 
It had not been possible to ascertain what exactly a task 

245 

involved in terms of a working day, there was no doubt 
that wages were extremely low. The Indian delegation 
suggested that the Council should request the Inter-
national Labour Organisation to make a survey of the 
labour situation in the Territory. It had been the 
experience of the Asian countries in particular that 
ILO surveys always resulted in a considerable impr~ve
ment in labour conditions. In the case of Tanganyika, 
it might be wondered whether the proximity of a terri-
tory where the indigenous inhabitants were treated 
worse than animals had not had a harmful effect on the 
condition of African labour, both legally and in practice. 
The suggested survey would be the more appropriate 
in view of the special responsibility which the ILO and 
the other specialized agencies had towards the Trust 
Territories. 
63. In the social field, attention had already been 
drawn to the fact that medical facilities were extremely 
inadequate and that much remained to be done before 
the whole population could benefit from them. Smallpox 
and plague had been largely brought under control, but 
at the present stage of social and medic~! development, 
such epidemics should no longer occur m any country. 
The annual report did not show that any extensive 
progress had been made in rura.l.sanitation; that situa-
tion was probably related to political backward_ness. N? 
social, educational or other advance was possible until 
there was social responsibility arising from the estab-
lishment of democratic political institutions. 
64. In the field of education, a European child cost 
the Administration eight times more than an Asian 
child, and thirty times more than an Africa~ chi!~. That 
could only mean that the quality of educatwn given to 
the European child was very much higher, an.d that the 
conditions in which the education was provided were 
much better than in the other two cases. True, most of 
the European children were children of administrators 
who had left their homes to serve in Tanganyika, and 
were entitled to receive as good an education as they 
would have received in the metropolitan country; there 
could be no question of lowering the standards of their 
education, but it might be asked why the expenditure 
on the education of African children was so low. In 
that connexion it should again be emphasized that 
universal or widespread education in any Territory was 
impossible and could not have lasting effects until the 
economic conditions of the inhabitants were satisfactory. 
He was glad to note that the Administration had a 
ten-year plan for the development of education; it was 
to be hoped that the execution of the plan would 
produce tangible results. The problem of illiteracy was 
not incapable of being tackled. The idea that there was 
resistance to literacy on the part of the population was 
not supported by experience. 
65. Following those general remarks, he wished to 
comment on and make suggestions regarding individual 
points to which he attached special importance. 

66. The Administration was to be commended on the 
measures it had taken to improve methods of cultivation 
and to prevent the erosion and impoverishment of the 
soil. It should also be commended for providing instal-
lations for the storage of grain, one of the primary 
needs for the prevention of famine. The annual report 
also spoke of improvement in the means of com-
munication; he hoped that the hinterland would not be 
neglected in the efforts made to expand the com-
munications system. 



67. The banking system and the circulation of currency 
also called for some comment. In the first place, the 
co-operative societies should be further developed. In 
that connexion, he noted with regret that the number 
of co-operatives and their membership had diminished 
during 1952. The banks were for the most part in the 
hands of nationals of the United Kingdom or South 
Africa. ~While the Territory's economy could not, of 
course, function without the help of banks- and foreign 
banks at that- it would be desirable if the African 
community were able in some measure to participate 
in the banking system. The annual report mentioned the 
National Bank of India; he wished to mention that the 
latter was neither national nor Indian but a purely 
commercial British bank with no connexion whatsoever 
with the Indian Government. It was a matter of concern 
that, in a Territory where economic progress was 
limited, there should be a vast increase in the volume 
of money. The only conclusion to be drawn from that 
fact was that the Territory was suffering from inflation, 
which meant that the cost of living was going up and 
that its economy was conditioned to stabilize the pound 
sterling. 
68. After thirty-five years of British administration, 
there were still no vital statistics in Tanganyika. There 
was no means of finding out the number of births and 
deaths, the infant mortality rate or other facts of funda-
mental importance in the country. The last census had 
been taken a long time ago, although usually a census 
was taken every ten years in every territory under 
British administration. An even more serious fact was 
that that census had been taken of the non-African 
populations only, while the indigenous inhabitants had 
been ignored completely ; it would appear that they did 
not count in the life of the Territory. 
69. It was a matter for congratulation that the inhabi-
tants of Tanganyika could move about without a pass, 
in contrast to the situation in neighbouring territories. 
It was also pleasing to note the sense of mutual assis-
tance, especially in times of trouble, which the 
indigenous inhabitants were showing. In any community, 
a sense of mutual assistance was the first and the most 
essential element for the establishment of representative 
institutions and democratic government. 
70. A particularly difficult problem was land alien-
ation. It had arisen and continued to arise in many 
dependent territories. In Tanganyika, at least 3,000 
square miles of land had been alienated to the white 
settlers, and although the concessions had been granted 
for a maximum of ninety-nine years, what had taken 
place was really alienation; in any event it was hardly 
likely that at the end of ninety-nine years the land would 
be handed back to its original owners. The result was 
to create a large indigenous proletariat of labourers who, 
having been deprived of their lands, had to work them 
for foreigners; for it was often difficult, if not impos-
sible, for them to leave and settle elsewhere. India fully 
subscribed to the principle of the multiracial society, but 
such a society was possible only if none of its parts had 
a monopoly in land; the best way to make the settler 
an alien in the community was to give him the owner-
ship or even the main part of the usufruct of the land. 
71. The racial situation did not raise such acute 
problems in Tanganyika as in some other countries and 
territories in Africa. In law, there was no racial dis-
crimination in Tanganyika, just as there was none in 
the United Kingdom or in any of the British dependent 
territories ; but the discussions in the Trusteeship 
Council had indicated that there were political and 

246 
Printed in Canada 

social differences between Europeans, Asians and 
Africans : the white settlers were in a privileged posi· 
tion with regard to land alienation, educational oppor-
tunities, medical care etc. Racial discrimination did not 
exist as a doctrine in the territories administered by the 
United Kingdom, but it was none the le?s. a fa~t. ~t 
was thus due not to a policy of the Admimstratwn m 
theory but to the fact that the indigenous inhabitants 
did not enjoy political rights and self-government. 
72. For that reason it was impossible to lay too much 
stress on the need for political progress. The only way 
in which a harmonious multi-racial society could be 
set up was by the introduction of a common electorate, 
with such safeguards, of course, as might be necessary 
to ensure protection of the wea~er racial g~oup's 
legitimate interests. In any event It was esse~ttal ~o 
avoid the opposite extreme, which at present existe~ m 
Tanganyika, where the representatio~ of the vanous 
groups was in inverse proportion to their numbers. Both 
the present system and the proposed solution were 
unfair to the indigenous inhabitants; the least that co?ld 
be done was to grant the Africans equal representatiOn 
with the other groups in the population. The argument 
that the Legislative Council was against the common 
electorate could not be accepted ; the members of the 
Legislative Council had been hand-pick~d by the 
Administration; they would probably have httle chance 
of being returned in an election. It could hardly be 
expected therefore that that so-called legislature would 
favour a truly democratic system. 
73. Doubtless there were some Asians and even 
Africans in Tanganyika who were not particul~rly 
anxious for the Territory to become self-goverm?g, 
since they wanted to retain the Crown's protec~10n 
against racial discrimination. For some- the Afnca_n 
chiefs - the reason was that if there were democratic 
elections, some of them might lose their chiefdoms; and 
for others such as some Indians, the reason was that 
they fear~d they might suffer the ~acial pr~ju~ice 
practised against them in several Afncan t~rntones, 
and not only in the Union of South Afnca. That 
situation was most regrettable, and offered cogent pro?! 
that the principles of the Charter and of the Trusteeship 
System were far from being observed in t~<l:t wh_ole 
section of the African continent. If the Admimstratwn 
did not stand up to the pressure from the white se!tl~rs 
and the neighbouring countries, particular_ly the ~mon 
of South Africa it would become increasmgly d1fficult 
or even impos~ible to create in the Terr~t?ry the 
harmonious spirit necessary both from the pohttcal and 
the social points of view. 
74. He drew the Council's attention to the passage 
relating to the maintenance of law and order, in the 
working paper drafted by the Secretariat (T/~-~19). 
Reference was made in that passage to the activities Ill 
Tanganyika of a screening party from Kenya, membe:s 
of which had been subsequently convicted of assault Ill 
a magistrate's court in Tanganyika, u~on evid~nce ~~ 
gross brutality towards some other indigenous mhab1· 
tants of Tanganyika. The Indian delegation wishe? to 
know whether the screening party had been autho~Ized 
by the Tanganyika authorities to enter the Terntory 
and whether the Tanganyika police had co-operated 
with it in using brutal methods against the per~ons 
under interrogation. The basic object of those questwns 
was to ascertain to what extent the judicial syste~ of 
the Territory was tied to those of the other East Afncan 
territories. 

The meeting rose at 6.20 p.m. 

Q-3825-April 1954-2,17~ 




